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Nowth Wildweod Schoel District

1201 Utlantic Uvenue
Nanth Wildwoed, N J 05260
609-729-4649
M. Chuistopher Qumotiang Mo. Rose M. Mitlar
Superintendent Schoel Business Administrator

January 25, 2021

Citizens, Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

City of North Wildwood School District

County of Cape May, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of North Wildwood Board of Education
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with the management of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of
the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory,
Financial, Statistical and Single Audit. The Introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the
District's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The Financial section includes
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the basic financial statements and schedules, as well as
the auditor's report thereon. The Statistical section includes selected financial and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an
annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and New Jersey
OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid Payments. Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the
internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The City of North Wildwood Board of
Education is an independent reporting entity as set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB
Cadification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. All funds of
the District are included in this report. The City of North Wildwood Board of Education
and its school constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre
K - 8. These include regular, vocational as well as special education for handicapped
students. The District completed the 2019-2020 fiscal year with an enrollment of 203
students, which is 12 fewer students than the previous year’s enroliment.

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: Our City continues to experience an
increase of tourists and an extended tourist year with festivals, parades and other
additional activities. The community continues to grow with an influx of new housing,




renovations and additions to property. Many of the new dwellings are single family or
summer only homes. This has caused a reduced inventory of rental properties, which
has impacted enrollment. The sending district of West Wildwood has seen increased
flooding during recent years, which has reduced the rental properties. This has also
effected our enroliment.

MAJOR INITIATIVES: The District provides instructional programs for pre-kindergarten
through eighth grade, which are supplemented with programs including library, STEM,
art, music, applied technology, gifted and talented, and basic skills.

The District continues to develop, monitor, and adjust a plan for in-person and on-line
learning for the 2020/2021 school year. The District's goal is to provide educators and
families with the most up-to-date information to ensure that Margaret Mace School is safe
to reopen and is prepared to accommodate students’ unique needs during the school
year. Margaret Mace Elementary School will implement a research-based writing
program to improve students’ ability to communicate through writing effectively.
Teachers will dedicate time to write, providing specific and actionable feedback for
students. Formative and summative assessments will be used to collect data, which will
be used to inform future instruction in writing.

The North Wildwood Board of Education, Superintendent, School Business Administrator,
and All Covered Care will work closely to upgrade the technology used in education.
Upgrading the computer network and in-house teacher training, including Google
Classroom, are critical components to maintaining staff and student use of technology.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the
assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure
is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District's Management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made periodically to
determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to
state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied
with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the
debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements
accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the
fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase
commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled
or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those
amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance as of June 30,
20109.
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11.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as promulgated
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of
the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in the "Notes to
the Financial Statements", Note 1.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR END: As demonstrated by the various
statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the District
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: At June 30, 2019, the District's outstanding debt issues
included $4,775,000.00 of general school bonds. The proceeds of this issue were to
provide funds for the construction and renovation of the Margaret Mace School.

CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by
state statute as detailed in "Notes to Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has
adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1980 to protect Governmental Units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law
requires governmental units to deposit funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT: North Wildwood Board of Education carries various forms of
insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile liability and
comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and
fidelity bonds.

OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ford,
Scott & Associates, L.L.C., CPAs, was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the
requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and related Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. The auditor's report on the basic financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are
included in the single audit section of this report.
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ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:
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PHONE 609.399.6333 « FAX 609.399.3710
www.ford-scott.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
City of North Wildwood School District
County of Cape May, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Wildwood
School District, City of North Wildwood, New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Wildwood School District, City of North
Wildwood, New Jersey, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Required
Supplementary Information identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of North Wildwood School District’'s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), the
schedule of state financial assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08, and statistical information are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining statements, and individual non-major fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), the schedule of state financial assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08, and statistical
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-
major fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), the schedule of state financial assistance as
required by NJ OMB 15-08, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 25,
2021 on our consideration of the City of North Wildwood School District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of North
Wildwood School District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Very truly yours,

Ford) Seott & Associates, L.L.C.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leon B Costetly

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 767

January 25, 2021
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of North Wildwood School District (“District”) annual financial report presents
our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on
June 30, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the
District’s financial statement.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The net position of the District increased compared to the prior year as a result of a slight
increase in tuition from other LEA's, as well as an overall decrease in expenditures, in
particular instructional salaries and health benefits.

e The State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $239,850.78 during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as
calculated on their base salaries. Also, the State paid $988,362.00 on behalf of the District for
TPAF Pension Contributions and OPEB. These amounts, which are not budgeted, are
included as both a revenue and appropriation in the financial statements.

e Asindicated by New Jersey State Statutes, the unreserved fund balance of the general fund is
limited to the greater of $250,000.00 or 2% of the total general fund expenditures. Any excess
is required to be designated as Restricted Fund Balance — Excess Surplus and included in the
next year's budget as budgeted fund balance. As of June 30, 2020, the District had excess
surplus in the amount of $1,491,067.98 of which $932,745.55 has been appropriated and
included as anticipated revenue in the 2021 fiscal year budget. This is compared to the prior
year excess surplus of $1,613,878.82, of which $681,133.27 was budgeted in the 2020 fiscal
year budget.

e During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District's governmental fund revenue realized
was $2,782,648.31 less than total expenditures. This amount includes $3,907,056.29 of
expenditures on the capital projects, which were funded in the 2019 fiscal year.

e In the District's business-type activities, net position increased $2,519.44 during the 2020
fiscal year, after taking into consideration the $30,000.00 transfer from the general fund. This
is in comparison to a $1,386.60 increase in fiscal year 2019.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents
combining statements for special revenue, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. The basic financial
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District.

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term
and short-term information about the District’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
District's government, reporting on the District's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements.

» The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like
instruction were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending.

» Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the
activities the District operates like businesses, such as the food service program.

» Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships — like
the unemployment trust fund — in which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent
for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial

statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial

11



statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to
one another.

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of
the District’'s government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this

overview section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of
each of the statements.

{This space intentionally left blank}
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A-1

Major Features of the City of North Wildwood Board of Education’s

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

Government wide Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Statements Funds Funds Funds
Scope Entire District The activities of Activities the Instances in which
(except fiduciary the District that District operates the District is the
funds) are not similar to private | trustee or agent for
proprietary or businesses; food someone else’s
fiduciary, such as service resources, such as
food service and payroll agency and
student activities student activities.
Required Statement of net Balance sheet Statement of net Statement of
financial position position fiduciary net position
statements Statement of

Statement of
activities

revenues,
expenditures,

and changes in
fund balances

Statement of
revenues,
expenses, and
changes in net
position

Statement of
changes in fiduciary
net position

Statement of

cash flows
Accounting basis | Accrual accounting | Modified accrual Accrual Accrual accounting
and and economic accounting and accounting and and economic
measurement resources focus current financial economic resources focus
focus resources focus resources focus
Type of All assets and Only assets All assets and All assets and
asset/liability liabilities, both expected to be liabilities, both liabilities, both short-
information financial and capital, used up and financial and term and long-term.
and short-term and liabilities that capital, and
long-term. come due during short-term and
the year or soon long-term.
thereafter; no
capital assets
included.
Type of All revenues and Revenues for All revenues and All revenues and
inflow/outflow expenses during the which cash is expenses, expenses during
information year, regardless of received during

when cash is
received or paid.

or soon after the
end of the year;
expenditures
when goods or
services have
been received
and payment is
due during the
year or soon
thereafter

regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

13




Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all
of the government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’'s net positions and how they have changed.
Net position — the difference between the District's assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the
District’s financial health, or position.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the District's
facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two categories:

e Governmental activities — most of the District’'s basic services are included here, such as
instruction, transportation, administration, and plant operations. Property taxes and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — the District charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of
certain services it provides. The District’s food service program is included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s most significant
funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the District uses to keep track
of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

The District has three kinds of funds:

e Governmental funds — Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in
the near future to finance the District's programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement that explains the
relationship (or differences) between them.

e Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges customers a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide
both long- and short-term financial information. In fact, the District’'s enterprise funds (one
type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities, but provide more detalil
and additional information, such as cash flows.

e Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for other assets that - because of a
trust arrangement — can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The District is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of
the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate statement of fiduciary net position and
a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the District's
government-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance
its operations.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net position. The District’s governmental activities net position increased between fiscal years 2019
and 2020 as a result of a decrease in expenses, in particular tuition and the change in net position
liability. Net position for business-type activities increased $2,519.44 during the current fiscal year.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activites Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Current and other assets $ 5,196,001.52 7,883,434.57 26,499.74 23,980.30 5,222,501.26 7,907,414.87
Capital assets 10,004,831.64 6,156,697.24 10,004,831.64 6,156,697.24
Total assets 15,200,833.16 14,040,131.81 26,499.74 23,980.30 15,227,332.90 14,064,112.11
Deferred outflows of
resources 382,013.00 652,352.00 - - 382,013.00 652,352.00
Long-term liabilities 7,056,798.74 7,441,274.11 - - 7,056,798.74 7,441,274.11
Other liabilities 247,064.26 153,579.46 - - 247,064.26 153,579.46
Total liabilities 7,303,863.00 7,594,853.57 - - 7,303,863.00 7,594,853.57
Deferred inflows of
resources 908,303.00 931,485.00 - - 908,303.00 931,485.00
Net Position
Invested in capital assets 5,229,831.64 1,207,697.24 - - 5,229,831.64 1,207,697.24
Restricted 4,728,597.39 7,533,167.77 4,728,597.39 7,533,167.77
Unrestricted (2,587,748.87) (2,574,719.77) 26,499.74 23,980.30 (2,561,249.13) (2,550,739.47)
Total net position $ 7,370,680.16 6,166,145.24 26,499.74 23,980.30 7,397,179.90 6,190,125.54

Changes in net position. The total governmental fund revenue of the District increased slightly
compared to amounts recognized in the prior year. This can be attributed to an increase in the overall
tax levy, as well as an increase in the amount of On-behalf Pension and OPEB contributions by the
State of New Jersey. For 2020 and 2019, the local tax levy was 64.12% and 60.73% of total
governmental fund revenues, respectively. The municipality levies this tax on properties located in the
City and remits the collections on a monthly basis to the District.

Approximately 5.27% of the District's governmental funds revenue came from the State of New Jersey
and Federal Government in the form of unrestricted aid. The state aid is based on the District’'s
enroliment as well as other factors such as legislative funding of the SFRA formula. The federal
funding will vary depending on available funding for that year. The District expenses are primarily
related to instruction, administration, and plant operations.

2020 2019

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Property Taxes $7,289,273.00 64.12% 7,232,444.00 60.73%
Unrestricted State and Federal Aid 599,261.00 5.27% 648,169.40 5.44%
Operating grants and contributions 721,843.00 6.35% 3,282,810.99 27.56%
Charges for services 2,644,722.40 23.26% 636,085.25 5.34%
Other 113,516.19 1.00% 109,909.92 0.92%
Totals $11,368,615.59 100.00% 11,909,419.56 100.00%

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Governmental Activities

The following schedule summarizes the governmental and business-type activities of the District
during the 2020 and 2019 fiscal years.

Revenues
Program Revenue
Charges for services
Federal and State grants and
Capital Grants entitlements
General revenues
Property taxes
Interest
State and Federal Aid
Other
Total revenues

Expenses
Instruction:
Regular
Special Education
Other Special Instruction
Support services:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
General administration services
School administration services
Plant operations & maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support services
Interest on long term debt
Capital outlay
Special schools
Other financing (sources)/uses
Business-type activities
Total expenses
Increase/(decrease) in net position

Business-type Activities

Governmental Activities Business Activities Totals

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$  721,843.00 636,085.25 17,904.23 27,311.96 739,747.23 663,397.21
2,644,722.40 3,282,810.99 61,514.92 63,545.68 2,706,237.32 3,346,356.67
7,289,273.00 7,232,444.00 7,289,273.00 7,232,444.00
63,264.66 85,067.72 500.39 557.25 63,765.05 85,624.97
599,261.00 648,169.40 599,261.00 648,169.40
50,251.53 24,842.20 50,251.53 24,842.20
11,368,615.59 11,909,419.56 79,919.54 91,414.89 11,448,535.13 12,000,834.45
3,669,231.41 4,088,950.24 3,669,231.41 4,088,950.24
734,985.82 843,576.47 734,985.82 843,576.47
578,726.97 623,940.01 578,726.97 623,940.01
1,107,301.36 1,241,108.00 1,107,301.36 1,241,108.00
1,903,117.11 2,256,801.20 1,903,117.11 2,256,801.20
254,158.49 283,430.64 254,158.49 283,430.64
76,013.82 79,566.48 76,013.82 79,566.48
1,273,508.22 1,073,990.96 1,273,508.22 1,073,990.96
123,412.21 128,027.12 123,412.21 128,027.12
189,327.42 203,479.99 189,327.42 203,479.99
196,983.72 65,358.41 196,983.72 65,358.41
3,516.00 3,516.00 3,516.00 3,516.00
23,798.12 30,833.60 23,798.12 30,833.60
30,000.00 100,888.67 (30,000.00)  (30,000.00) - 70,888.67
107,400.10 120,028.29 107,400.10 120,028.29
10,164,080.67 11,023,467.79 77,400.10 90,028.29 10,241,480.77 11,113,496.08
$ 1,204,534.92 885,951.77 2,519.44 1,386.60 1,207,054.36 887,338.37

Operating and non-operating revenues of the District's business-type activities decreased $11,495.35
from the previous year while expenses also decreased $12,628.29. School districts throughout the
State of New Jersey switched from in-person instruction to virtual instruction in mid-March through the
end of the school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, meals were provided to students

at no cost.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As of the year end, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $7,370,680.16 which
is $1,204,534.92 higher than the beginning of the year. This is primarily due to an increase in the
District’s tax levy and tuition collected from other local school districts, as well as an overall decrease

in expenditures.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

As further explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements, annual appropriated budgets are
prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special revenue funds. The budgets are
submitted to the County office and, as a Type Il School District that has elected to have November
elections, requires approval by the voters only when statutory limits are exceeded. Transfers of
appropriations may be made by Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. The District is
permitted to encumber funds throughout the year for purchases ordered but not yet received. Any
open encumbrances as of June 30" carry over to the next fiscal year and are added to the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget.

After adjusting total revenue reported on Exhibit C-1 for the Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
Contribution and on-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, which are not budgeted, the District’s actual
revenue was $194,958.94 higher than the budgeted amount. Again, after adjusting for the
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution and on-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, actual
expenditures were below the budgeted appropriations by $1,656,179.41.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
At the end of 2020, the District had invested $10,004,831.64, net of depreciation, in a broad range of

capital assets, including land, buildings, vehicles and machinery. Capital assets purchased through
the business-type activities are fully depreciated.

2020 2019
Land $ 474,000.00 474,000.00
Construction in Progress 5,083,661.46 1,041,823.39
Buildings & Improvements 4,404,852.50 4,600,726.36
Machinery & Equipment 42,317.68 40,147.49
Total $ 10,004,831.64 6,156,697.24

Total aggregate cost basis for the districts capital assets as of June 30, 2020 was $13,773,607.05 with
accumulated depreciation of $3,768,775.41. More detailed information about the District's capital
assets is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Long-term Debt

Balance Balance
June 30, 2019 Issued Retired June 30, 2020
Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable 4,949,000.00 174,000.00 4,775,000.00
Compensated Absences Payable 447,206.11 54,833.23 23,486.60 478,552.74
Net Pension Liability 2,045,068.00 763,827.00 1,005,649.00 1,803,246.00
Total Governmental Activities 7,441,274.11 818,660.23 1,203,135.60 7,056,798.74

More detailed information about the District’'s long-term debt is presented in Note 9 to the financial
statements.

{This space intentionally left blank}
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For the Future

The City of North Wildwood School District is in good financial condition presently. The School District
is proud of its community support of the public schools.

In conclusion, the City of North Wildwood School District has committed itself to financial excellence
for many years. In addition, the School District's system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal
financial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal
management to meet the challenges of the future.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the school district’s finances and to show the school district’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact
Rose M. Millar, School Business Administrator at the City of North Wildwood Board of Education
District Office, 1201 Atlantic Avenue, City of North Wildwood, NJ 08260.
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DISTRICT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from agency account
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory
Capital assets, not depreciated
Capital assets, net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accrued interest

Accounts payable

Payable to other governments

Unearned revenue

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due beyond one year
Net Pension Liability

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net position

City of North Wildwood School District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 5,033,160.76 92,594.62 5,125,755.38

74,623.87 (74,623.87) -
88,216.89 8,056.99 96,273.88
472.00 472.00
5,557,661.46 5,557,661.46
4,447,170.18 - 4,447,170.18
15,200,833.16 26,499.74 15,227,332.90
382,013.00 382,013.00
382,013.00 - 382,013.00
52,999.66 52,999.66
42,651.56 42,651.56
76,017.05 76,017.05
75,395.99 75,395.99
215,000.00 215,000.00
5,038,552.74 - 5,038,552.74
1,803,246.00 1,803,246.00
7,303,863.00 - 7,303,863.00
908,303.00 908,303.00
5,229,831.64 - 5,229,831.64
4,728,597.39 4,728,597.39
(2,587,748.87) 26,499.74 (2,561,249.13)
$ 7,370,680.16 26,499.74 7,397,179.90

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other funds

Receivables from other governments
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted for:
Excess surplus
Excess surplus - designated for

subsequent year's expenditures

Committed to:
Capital reserve
Maintenance reserve
Tuition reserve for 2018/2019
Tuition reserve for 2019/2020
Capital projects

Assigned to:
Designated for subsequent

year's expenditures

Encumbrances

Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Debt service fund

Total Fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

$

City of North Wildwood School District

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Exhibit B-1

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
4,779,208.90 203,474.01 50,237.63 240.22 5,033,160.76
176,083.73 50,117.31 226,201.04
9,145.00 79,071.89 88,216.89
4,964,437.63 282,545.90 50,237.63 50,357.53 5,347,578.69
12,978.56 29,673.00 42,651.56
- 101,459.86 50,117.31 151,577.17
76,017.05 76,017.05
75,395.99 75,395.99
12,978.56 282,545.90 50,117.31 - 345,641.77
558,322.43 558,322.43
932,745.55 932,745.55
1,730,180.23 1,730,180.23
897,159.30 897,159.30
738.00 738.00
50,689.20 50,689.20
120.32 120.32
558,642.36 - 558,642.36
222,982.00 222,982.00
50,357.53 50,357.53
4,951,459.07 - 120.32 50,357.53 5,001,936.92

4,964,437.63 282,545.90 50,237.63 50,357.53

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest payments on long-term liabilities are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported

Long-term pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current

in the funds.

period and therefore are not reported in the funds

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported

in the funds.

Bonds payable

Compensated absences

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

10,004,831.64

(52,999.66)

(2,329,536.00)

(4,775,000.00)
(478,552.74)

$ 7,370,680.16
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City of North Wildwood School District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

REVENUES

Local tax levy
Tuition Charges
Interest
Miscellaneous
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other special instruction
Support services and undistributed costs:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support services
Unallocated Benefits
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Capital outlay
Special schools
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other financing
(uses) over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfer out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance—July 1
Fund balance—June 30

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit B-2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

7,043,281.00 245,992.00 7,289,273.00
721,843.00 721,843.00
52,162.41 11,102.25 63,264.66
50,251.53 - 50,251.53
1,827,473.78 435,944.39 126,723.00 2,390,141.17
- 322,547.23 322,547.23
9,695,011.72 758,491.62 11,102.25 372,715.00 10,837,320.59
1,924,611.55 429,159.99 2,353,771.54
433,515.08 433,515.08
354,916.25 354,916.25
1,000,207.36 107,094.00 1,107,301.36
955,385.33 222,237.63 1,177,622.96
169,912.69 169,912.69
48,900.89 48,900.89
780,508.01 780,508.01
123,412.21 123,412.21
123,535.26 123,535.26
2,482,504.42 2,482,504.42
174,000.00 174,000.00
198,714.18 198,714.18
138,297.78 - 3,907,056.29 4,045,354.07
15,999.98 15,999.98
8,551,706.81 758,491.62 3,907,056.29 372,714.18 13,589,968.90
1,143,304.91 - (3,895,954.04) 0.82 (2,752,648.31)
11,102.25 11,102.25
(30,000.00) (11,102.25) (41,102.25)
(30,000.00) - (11,102.25) 11,102.25 (30,000.00)
1,113,304.91 - (3,907,056.29) 11,103.07 (2,782,648.31)
3,838,154.16 - 3,907,176.61 39,254.46 7,784,585.23
4,951,459.07 - 120.32 50,357.53 5,001,936.92
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Exhibit B-4

City of North Wildwood School District
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2020

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food
Service
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 92,594.62
Accounts receivable
Receivables from other governments 8,056.99
Inventories 472.00
Total current assets 101,123.61
Noncurrent assets:
None
Total assets 101,123.61
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Due to general fund 74,623.87
Total liabilities 74,623.87
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt -
Unrestricted 26,499.74
Total net position $ 26,499.74

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Exhibit B-5

City of North Wildwood School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food
Service
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs $ 17,904.23
Special events -
Total operating revenues 17,904.23
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales-reimbursable programs 39,695.92
Cost of sales-non-reimbursable programs 5,590.68
Salaries 31,675.55
Employee benefits 28,097.84
General supplies 2,340.11
Total Operating Expenses 107,400.10
Operating (loss) (89,495.87)
Nonoperating revenues and expenses:
State sources:
State school lunch program 797.69
Federal sources:
National school lunch program 43,187.33
National school breakfast program 17,529.90
Interest and investment revenue 500.39
Total nonoperating revenues 62,015.31
Income before contributions & transfers (27,480.56)
Transfers in 30,000.00
Change in net position 2,519.44
Total net position—beginning 23,980.30
Total net position—ending $ 26,499.74

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

25



City of North Wildwood School District
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and other funds
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments to suppliers

Net cash (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources
Federal Sources
(To)/From other funds
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and investment revenue
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net (increase) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances—beginning of year
Balances—end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by/(used in) operating activities:
Operating (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash provided by/
(used in) operating activities
(Increase) in Inventory
Total adjustments

Net cash (used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Exhibit B-6

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food
Service

$ 17,904.23
(31,675.55)
(28,097.84)
(47,779.21)

(89,648.37)

771.70
55,839.70
91,648.39

148,259.79

500.39

500.39

59,111.81
33,482.81

92,594.62

(89,495.87)

(152.50)

(152.50)

$ (89,648.37)
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City of North Wildwood School District
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

Exhibit B-7

Unemployment Agency
Compensation Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 65,458.24 29,280.35
Total assets 65,458.24 29,280.35
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -
Payroll deductions and withholdings 16,685.23
Payalbe to student groups 12,595.12
Total liabilities - 29,280.35

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes $ 65,458.24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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City of North Wildwood School District
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment
Compensation

ADDITIONS
Employee contributions $ 4,923.59
Board contributions -
Total additions 4,923.59
DEDUCTIONS
Other payments 3,514.40
Total deductions 3,514.40
Change in net position 1,409.19
Net assets—beginning of the year 64,049.05
Net assets—end of the year $ 65,458.24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of North Wildwood School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to
function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the
fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the City of North Wildwood School District
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In its
accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and
used by the District are discussed below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The City of North Wildwood School District is a Type Il district located in the County of Cape May, State of
New Jersey. As a type Il district, the School District functions independently through a Board of
Education. The board is comprised of seven members elected to a three-year term. The purpose of the
District is to educate students in grades K-8. The City of North Wildwood School District had an
approximate enroliment at June 30, 2020 and 2019 of 203 and 215 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Caodification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the District is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

VVVVVY

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS:

The District’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the District's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The District's
general and special revenue activities are classified as governmental activities. The District’'s food service
program is classified as a business-type activity.

In the governmental-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations. The District's net positions are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net
of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The District first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the District’s

functions and business-type activities (food service). The functions are also supported by general
government revenues (property taxes, tuition, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement
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City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and
capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (regular instruction,
vocational programs, student & instruction related services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property
taxes, tuition, interest income, etc.).

a. The District does allocate indirect costs such as depreciation expense, compensated absences,
On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, and Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change in the
District’'s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. Fiduciary funds are not included in the
government-wide statements.

C. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are
reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB
Standards sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statements. The State of New Jersey Department of Education has mandated that all New Jersey School
Districts must report all governmental funds as major, regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition
of a major fund. However, the criteria are applied to proprietary funds.

The following fund types are used by the District:
1. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources)
rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District.

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for a specific purpose. The special revenue fund is specifically
used to account for state and federal grant monies that have been allocated to the District.

c. Capital Projects funds are used to account for all financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. The financial resources are derived from
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate
guestion on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

d. Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and
improvement programs.
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City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund balance:

> Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

> Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

> Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of
Education, the District's highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments
may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the Board of
Education.

> Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District’s policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business Administrator.

» Unassigned — includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or
restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund. The
District reports all amounts that meet the unrestricted General Fund Balance Policy
described below as unassigned:

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. When an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available,
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which
committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers amounts to have
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

2. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net
position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are
those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of
the District:

a. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely
secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of
providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes
fees and charges based on a pricing policy designated to recover similar costs. The District
operates a food service fund to provide a child nutrition program for the students of the district.

3. Fiduciary Funds:
Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are
not available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net

position and are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The District’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (pension,
private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third
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City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide
statements.

All funds internal activity is eliminated when carried to the Government-wide statements.

D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made
regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual:

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual:

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e.,
both measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days
after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on
general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

E. FINANCIAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus
accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one
year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

For the purpose of determining cash equivalents the District considers all investments with an original
maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may invest in. New Jersey Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act (“GUDPA”"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJSA 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan
institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental
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City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental units.

2. Investments:

Investments, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated at fair value, (quoted market
price or the best available estimate). Interest earned on investments in the Capital Projects Fund is
recognized in the District's General Fund.

3. Inventories:

Inventories in the general fund consist of expendable supplies held for the District's use and are carried at
cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in the enterprise fund are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the first-in, first —out method. The District did not have inventory in the
general fund and had the following inventory in the enterprise fund:

Food $ 100.00
Supplies 372.00
$ ____472.00_

4, Capital Assets:

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical
cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
Improvements 10-20 years

Infrastructure assets include roads, parking lots, underground pipe, etc. All infrastructure assets are
reported in the financial statements and are being depreciated over their useful lives.

5. Revenues:

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are susceptible to accrual and
under New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance
of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the
entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or
current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue. In respect to grant revenues, the provider
recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the
applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met. Resources transmitted before the
eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and unearned revenue by the
recipient. Program revenues, including tuition revenue are reported as reductions to expenses in the
statement of activities.

6. Expenditures:

Expenses are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.
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City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

7. Compensated absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick
leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already
rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its
employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that
relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District
and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such
events take place.

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund that
will pay for the compensated absences. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is reported
in the District-wide Financial Statements as a Governmental Activity.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and liability of
the fund that will pay for them.

8. Interfund Activity:

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related costs as reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

9. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and
debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and, as long as the
District budget is within State mandated CAPs, there is no public vote on the budget. If the budget
exceeds State mandated CAPs, the voters have an opportunity to approve or reject the budget at the
regular election held in November. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting,
except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control is established
at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level
of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23-2(g).
Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year
and are subject to two-thirds majority vote by the School Board and under certain circumstances require
approval by the County Superintendent of Schools. The following significant transfers were approved by
the Board of Education during the 2020 and 2019 fiscal years:

{This space intentionally left blank}
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June 30, 2020

6/30/20 6/30/19

Instruction — Teacher Salaries Kindergarten $ (106,588.08) -
Instruction — General Supplies 97,829.83
Tuition to County Special Services School District (87,963.27)
Tuition to Private Schools for the Handicapped (73,405.00) -
Allowable Maintenance - Repair and Maintenance (162,244.85) (139,749.40)
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Srvs - Custodial -

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 99,749.74

Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 70,277.50
Health Benefits (181,001.30) -
Construction Services 171,809.00 -

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally
mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special
revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year
end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary
basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of
GAAP basis financial reports.

10. Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

11. Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2019/20 were based on rates established by the receiving district.
These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

12. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those results.

13. Allocation of Costs

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District has allocated unallocated benefits to various
programs based on the original budgetary expenditures by program.
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14. Pensions

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employee Retirement System
(PERS) and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by the TPAF and PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds
of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value

E. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 84,
“Fiduciary Activities”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods after December 31, 2020, will
have an effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 87 “Leases”.
This statement, which is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2022, may have an
effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In June 2019, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 89,
“Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period”. This statement, which
is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2021, will not have any effect on the District’s
financial reporting.

In May 2019, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 91, “Conduit
Debt Obligations”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2020, will
not have any effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In March 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 93,
“Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning
after December 31, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter, will not have any effect on the District's
financial reporting.

In March 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 94,
“Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangement”. This statement,
which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2023, and all reporting periods thereatfter,
will not have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In June 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 94, “Certain
Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457
Deferred Compensation Plans — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a
supersession of GASB Statement No. 32”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter, will not have any effect on the District’s financial
reporting.

NOTE 2. INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2020, the District had no investments.
Interest Rate Risk. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment

maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
However, New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits the length of time for most investments to 397 days.
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Credit Risk. New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits District investments to those specified in the Statutes.
The type of allowable investments are Bonds of the United States of America or of the District or the local
units in which the District is located; obligations of federal agencies not exceeding 397 days; government
money market mutual funds; the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local government
investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any
one issuer.

NOTE 3. CASH

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District’s policy is based on New Jersey Statutes
requiring cash be deposited only in New Jersey based banking institutions that participate in the New
Jersey Governmental Depository Protection Act (GUDPA) or in qualified investments established in New
Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 that are treated as cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2020, $82,544.89 of the
District’s bank balance of $5,566,192.18 was exposed to credit risk.

NOTE 4. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the City of North Wildwood School District in a prior year,
which was certified for taxes, for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in
subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’'s approved
Long-Range Facilities Plan (LRFP) and updated annually in the Quality Assurance Annual Report
(QAAR). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the
capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district may
also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by
a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized
pursuant to NJSA 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJAC 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance in the account cannot at any
time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

FY2020 FY2019

Beginning balance, July 1 $ 1,065,811.12 756,532.03
Interest earnings 12,369.11 7,279.09
Deposits:

Budgeted — 2019 adopted budget 2,000.00

Budgeted — 2020 adopted budget 2,000.00

Board Resolution — adopted in June 650,000.00 300,000.00
Decreased hy:

None
Ending balance, June 30, 2020 $ 1,730,180.23 1,065,811.12

{This space intentionally left blank}
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NOTE 5. MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND

New Jersey Administrative Code 6A:23A-14.2 permits school districts to establish a maintenance reserve
account for the required maintenance of the District's facilities, in accordance with the Commissioner
approved plan. The District can increase the balance in this reserve account by appropriating funds in
the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by deposit of any unanticipated revenue or
unexpended line-item appropriation by board resolution at year end.

FY2020 FY2019

Beginning balance, July 1, 2019 $ 887,189.08 580,583.49
Deposits:

Interest earnings 9,970.22 6,605.59

Board Resolution — adopted in June - 300,000.00
Decreased hy:

None - -
Ending balance, June 30, 2020 $ 897,159.30 887,189.08

NOTE 6. RESERVE FOR TUITION

New Jersey Administrative Code 6A:23A-17.1(f) permits school districts to establish a tuition reserve
account to restrict funds for a foreseeable future tuition adjustment. The maximum amount that may be
restricted at year end is 10% of the estimated tuition cost of the contract year. Upon certification of rates
in the second year following the contract year, full appropriation of the applicable year’'s reserve must be
liquidated and any remaining balance related to that year must be reserved and appropriated in the
budget.

The activity of the tuition reserve for the July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2019

Reserve for 2018/2019 $ 50,592.88
Reserve for 2019/2020 737.72
51,330.60

Increased hy:

Board resolution — adopted 6/8/2020 50,000.00

Interest earnings 689.60
Decreased by:

Anticipated in FY2020 budget (50,593.00)
Ending balance, June 30, 2020

Reserve for 2019/2020 738.00

Reserve for 2020/2021 50,689.20

$ __ 51,427.20

{This space intentionally left blank}
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NOTE 7. FIXED ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balance Disposals/ Balance
6/30/19 Additions Adjustments 6/30/20

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not

being depreciated
Land $ 474,000.00 474,000.00
Construction in Progress 1,041,823.39 4,041,838.07 5,083,661.46
Total capital assets not

being depreciated 1,515,823.39 4,041,838.07 5,557,661.46
Bldgs & Improv 7,834,874.35 7,834,874.35
Machinery & equip 366,652.84 16,463.40 (2,045.00) 381,071.24
Total at cost 8,201,527.19 16,463.40 (2,045.00)  8,215,945.59
Less accum depr.

Bldg & improve (3,234,149.99) (195,871.86) (3,430,021.85)

Machinery & equip (326,505.35) (14,293.21) 2,045.00 (338,753.56)
Total accum depr (3,560,655.34) (210,165.07) 2,045.00 (3,768,775.41)
Total capital assets

being depreciated 4,640,871.85 (193,701.67) 0.00 4,447,170.18
Governmental activities -

Capital Assets, net 6,156,695.24 3,848,136.40 0.00 10,004,831.64
Business-type activities
Equipment - -
Less Accum depr - -
Business-type Activities

Capital Assets, net $ - - -

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Regular instruction $ 80,301.12
Special education 18,403.02
Other special instruction 13,662.33
Student & instruction related services 44,287.17
General Administration 6,491.98
School administrative expenses 2,089.32
Plant operations and maintenance 39,259.26
Business and other support services 5,069.94
Special schools 600.93

$ 210,165.07

{This space intentionally left blank}
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NOTE 8. OPERATING LEASES

Effective April 1, 2019, the District entered into a lease agreement for a postage machine and meter. The
lease term is 63 months with payments of $156.00 due quarterly. Total rent expense for the 2020 fiscal
year was $624.00.

Effective December 2016, the District entered into a lease agreement for 36 printers. The lease term is
48 months with payments of $331.56 due monthly. The lease is scheduled to expire in November 2020
however Ricoh has agreed to extend the lease term, at the same monthly rate, through June 30, 2021.
The lease will automatically renew each year unless the District gives 30 days notice to cancel. Total rent
expense for the 2020 fiscal year was $3,978.72.

Effective July 2018, the District entered into a lease agreement for 6 copiers. The lease term is 48
months with payments of $1,610.37 due monthly. Total rent expense for the 2020 fiscal year was
$19,324.44

The following are minimum lease payments due on an annual basis:

Year ending June 30,

2021 $ 23,927.16
2022 19,948.44
2023 624.00
2024 624.00
2025 0.00
Total $ 45,123.60

NOTE 9. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the
general long-term debt account group:

Balance Balance Due within
6/30/19 Issued Retired 6/30/20 One Year
Governmental
Activities
Compensated
Absences Payable $ 447,206.11 54,833.23 23,486.60 478,552.74 -
Bonds Payable 4,949,000.00 174,000.00 4,775,000.00 215,000.00
Net Pension Liability 2,045,068.00 763,827.00 1,005,649.00 1,803,246.00 -
Total 7,441,274.11 818,660.23 1,203,135.60 7,056,798.74 215,000.00

Business-type
Activities
Compensated
Absences Payable - - -

Business-type activities
Long-term liabilities $ - - -
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A. Bonds Payable:

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the district through referendums. All
bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the
District are general obligation bonds.

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Bonds in the amount of $4,949,000 were sold on November 29, 2018 and are due in annual installments
through September 1, 2036. Interest at rates ranging from 3.00% to 3.625% is due semi-annually on the
15t day of March and September, commencing on September 1, 2019. Bonds maturing on or after
September 1, 2027 are subject to redemption at the option of the Board prior to maturity, in whole or in
part, on any date on or after September 1, 2026. The balance remaining as of June 30, 2020 was
$4,775,000.00.

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 215,000.00 156,650.00 371,650.00
2022 220,000.00 150,125.00 370,125.00
2023 230,000.00 143,375.00 373,375.00
2024 235,000.00 136,400.00 371,400.00
2025 245,000.00 129,200.00 374,200.00
2026-2030 1,350,000.00 519,775.00 1,869,775.00
2031-2035 1,600,000.00 264,625.00 1,864,625.00
2036-2037 680,000.00 24,437.50 704,437.50

Totals $ 4,775,000.00 1,524,587.50 6,299,587.50

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or
the Teacher’'s Pension and Annuity Fund cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
which have been established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of
Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all
obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate.
The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO
Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or the reports can be accessed on the internet at
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts.shtml.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified
members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan
with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State
of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by
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the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees' Retirement System

The Public Employees' Retirement System was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members.
The Public Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district
or public agency provided the employee is not required to be a member of another State-administered
retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July 1, 2008 under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et seq. The DCRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
contribution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a tax-
sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage.
Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A 43:15C-1 et seq.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and
N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan member
and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS
provide for employee contributions of 7.5% of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers
are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The current TPAF
rate is 28.34% and the PERS rate is 7.5% of covered payroll. The School District’'s contributions to TPAF
for the years ending June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018 were $988,362.00, $996,059.00, and $840,968.00,
respectively, and paid by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the board, equal to the required
contributions for each year. The School District’s contributions to PERS for the years ending June 30,
2020, 2019, and 2018 were $97,987.00, $104,003.00, and $93,487.41, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

The Board's total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018 was $4,487,050.05,
$4,333,484.59, and $4,544,969.50; covered payroll was $3,349,799.00, $3,496,830.00, and
$3,525,878.00, for TPAF; and $692,209.00, $636,093.00, and $690,824.00, for PERS.

Significant Legislation

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011 made various changes to the manner in which the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and the Teacher’'s Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) operate
and to the benefit provisions of those systems.

Chapter 78's provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

¢ New members of the PERS and TPAF hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5 members) will need
30 years of creditable service and age 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of ¥ of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65.

e The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the systems is increased from age 63 to 65
for Tier 5 members.

e Increases in active member contribution rates. PERS active member rates increase from 5.5% of
annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years. For fiscal year
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2013, the member contribution rates increased in October 2012. The phase-in of the additional
incremental member contribution rates for PERS members will take place in July of each
subsequent fiscal year.

e The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to current and
future retirees and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

¢ New employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-provided health benefit
coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage.
The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected
level of coverage. The increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period
for those employed prior to Chapter 78’s effective date with a minimum contribution required to be
at least 1.5% of salary.

e In addition, this new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension systems’
unfunded accrued liability (from a level percent of pay method to a level dollar of pay).

Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-administered
retirement systems concerning eligibility, the retirement allowance formula, the definition of
compensation, the positions eligible for service credit, the non-forfeitable right to a pension, and employer
contributions to the retirement systems.

Also, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010 changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members of PERS from the
amount of annual compensation to the number of hours worked weekly. Also, it returned the benefit
multiplier for new members of PERS and TPAF to 1/60" from 1/55", and it provided that new members of
PERS and TPAF have the retirement allowance calculated using the average annual compensation for
the last five years of service instead of the last three years of service. New members of PERS and TPAF
will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one employer. Pension service credit will be
earned for the highest paid position only. The law also requires the State to make its full pension
contribution, defined a 1/7" of the required amount, beginning in fiscal years 2012.

Chapter 3, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary disability retirement
for new members of the PERS and TPAF with disability insurance coverage similar to that provided by the
State to individuals enrolled in the State’s Defined Contribution Retirement Program.

Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 implemented certain recommendations contained in the December 1, 2006 report
of the Joint Legislative Committee on Public Employee Benefits Reform; established a DCRP for elected
and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007; the new pension loan interest rate became 4.69%
per year, and an $8.00 processing fee per loan was charged, effective January 1, 2008. The legislation
also removed language from existing law that permits the State Treasurer to reduce employer pension
contributions needed to fund the Funds and Systems when excess assets are available.

NOTE 11. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND (PERS)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $1,803,246.00 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District's proportion was .01000775740%,
which was a decrease of 3.65% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $102,683.00. At June 30,

2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
PERS from the following sources:

43



City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 32,366.00 7,966.00
Changes of assumptions 180,061.00 625,901.00
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 28,465.00
Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 169,586.00 245,971.00
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total $ 382,013.00 908,303.00

$97,346.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school district
contributions subsequent to the measurement date (June 30, 2019) will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year ended
June 30,
2019 $ (62,734.00)
2020 (193,485.00)
2021 (177,365.00)
2022 (84,079.00)
2023 (8,627.00)
Total $ (526,290.00)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation of July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the
following assumptions, applied to all period in the measurement:
Inflation rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%

Salary increases:
Through 2026
Thereafter

2.00% - 6.00% (based on years of service)
3.00% - 7.00% (based on years of service)
Investment rate of return: 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future

44



City of North Wildwood School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were base on
the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disable Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflations. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
US Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% as of June 30, 2019. This single
blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30, 2019, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
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contributions from employers will be made based on 70% of the actuarially determined contributions for
the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on
those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected
future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2057 and the municipal
bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participated employers as of June 30,
2019, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension
liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:

Decrease Rate Increase
(5.68%) (6.28%) (7.28%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 2,164,194.21 1,803,246.00 1,499,449.45

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
PERS financial report.

NOTE 12. TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the
District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total
portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proprotionate share of the net pension liability $ -

State's proprotionate share of the net position liability
associated with the District 20,937,017.00

Total $ 20,937,017.00

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total pension liability to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportion was 0.00%, which was no change from
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $1,234,921.00 and
revenue of $685,941.00 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2019, the District reported
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deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to TPAF from the following
sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 410,581.00 72,784.00
Changes of assumptions 2,978,034.00 5,855,292.00
Net difference betweenn projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 55,734.00
Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,088,739.00
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total $ 4,477,354.00 5,983,810.00

$0.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from district contributions
subsequent to the measurement date (June 30, 2019) will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year ended
June 30,
2019 $ (53,945.00)
2020 (139,467.00)
2021 (124,872.00)
2022 (240,884.00)
2023 (471,580.00)
Thereafter (475,707.00)
Total $ (1,506,455.00)

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial
valuation used the following assumptions, applied to all period included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate

Price 2.75%
Wage 3..25%
Salary increases
Through 2026 1.55% - 4.55% (based on years of senice)
Thereafter 2.75% - 5.65% (based on years of senice)
Investment rate of return 7.00%
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Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee
mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Medan Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 114.7%
adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety
Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement
is based on Scale MP-2019

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return.
Risk Mitigation Services 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
US Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% as of June 30,
2019. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30, 2019, based on the Bond
Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds
with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates
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and that contributions from employers will be based on 70% of the actuarially determined contributions for
the State. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2054. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2054, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 5.60% as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (4.60%) or 1-percentage
point higher (6.60%) than the current rate:

L4

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
" (4.60%) " (5.60%) " (6.60%)

District's proportionate share of the
net pension liabiltiy $ - - -

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
TPAF financial report.

NOTE 13. OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the OPEB Plan

The State of New Jersey Provides employer-paid coverage to members of the TPAF who retire from a
board of education or county college with 25 year of service or on a disability retirement. Under the
provision of Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, the State also provides employer-paid coverage to members of
PERS and Alternate Benefits Program (ABP) who retire from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the member’s employer does not provide this coverage.
Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement medical coverage to their employees.
Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can continue in the program
if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in the health benefits plan of their
former employer and are enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B by paying the cost of the insurance for
themselves and their covered dependents. In Fiscal Year 2019, the State paid PRM benefits for 153,893
State and local retirees.

The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which means that the State
does not pre-fund, or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM expenses
that the State may incur in future years. For Fiscal Year 2019, the State contributed $1.908 billion to pay
for pay-as-you-go PRM benefit costs incurred by covered retirees. The State’s “pay-as-you-go”
contributions have remained consistent with Fiscal Year 2018 amounts. The State has appropriated
$1.612 billion in Fiscal Year 2020 as the State’s contribution to fund pay-as-you-go PRM costs.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State is required to quantify and disclose its
obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired plan members. This new standard
supersedes the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for Fiscal Year 2018. The State is
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now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language names the State as the legal
obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2019 total State OPEB liability to provide these benefits is
$76.0 billion, a decrease of $14.5 billion or 16 percent from the $90.5 billion liability recorded in Fiscal
Year 2018.

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75.
Total OPEB Liability

The State, a non-employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA’s
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No.
75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the LEA did not recognize any portion of the collective net OPEB liability
on the Statement of Net Position. Accordingly, the following OPEB liability note information is reported at
the State’s level and is not specific to the board of education/board of trustees. Note that actual numbers
will be published in the NJ State CAFR at https://www.nj.gov/treasury/omb/cafr.shtml.

Actuarial assumptions and other imputes:

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation reported by the State in the State’s most
recently issued CAFR was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied
to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation rate — 2.50%
Salary Increases —

TPAF - 1.55% - 3.05% based on years of service.
PERS - 2.00% - 6.00% based on years of service

Mortality Rates —

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers”
(TPAF/ABP), AND “General” (PERS) classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2019. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the
Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2019. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification
headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019

Health Care Trend Assumptions —

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.7% and decreases
to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits, the
actual fully insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2020 are
reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for all future years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a 4.5%
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long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement,
the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate —

The discount rate for June 30, 2019 was 3.50%. This represents the municipal
bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate
of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the
calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal
bond rate.

The discount rates as of June 30, 2017, 2018, and 2019 are 3.58%, 3.87%, and 3.50%,
respectively.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of actuarial

experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018 for
TPAF and PERS, respectively.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability reported by the State of New Jersey

Balance at 6/30/18 $ 46,110,832,982.00

Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,734,404,850.00
Interest 1,827,787,206.00
Differences between Expected & Actual Experiences (7,323,140,818.00)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 622,184,027.00
Contributions: Member 37,971,171.00
Benefit payments (1,280,958,373.00)
Net changes (4,381,751,937.00)

Balance at 6/30/19 $  41,729,081,045.00

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.87% in 2018 to
3.50% in 2019.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate:
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the State for school board retirees, as well as
what the state’s total OPEB liability for school boards would be it were calculated using a discount
rate that 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
Total OPEB Liability
(School Retirees) 49,298,534,898.00 41,729,081,045.00 35,716,321,820.00

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates.
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the State, as well as what the State’s total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:
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1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost

Trend Rates

1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability

(School Retirees) 34,382,902,820.00

41,729,081,045.00

51,453,912,586.00

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the board of education recognized OPEB expense of $249,681.00
determined by the State as the total OPEB liability for benefits provided through a defined OPEB plan that
is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75 and in which there is

a special funding situation.

In accordance with GASB 75, the board of education’s proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is
zero, there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. At June 30, 2019, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to retired school employees’ OPEB from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$ (10,484,965,300.00)
(8,481,529,343.00)

(1,921,145,183.00)

1,190,373,242.00

$ 1,921,145,183.00 $ (20,887,639,826.00)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retired
school employees’ OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended
June 30,
2020 $ (2,546,527,182.00)
2021 (2,546,527,182.00)
2022 (2,546,527,182.00)
2023 (2,546,527,182.00)
2024 (2,546,527,182.00)
Thereafter (6,233,858,733.00)
Total $ (18,966,494,643.00)

(Contributions made after June 30, 2018 are reported as deferred outflow of resources but are not

amortized in the expense).

Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued OPEB

financial report.
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NOTE 14. LABOR CONTRACTS

As of June 30, 2020 the District's employees were organized in the following collective bargaining unit.

Bargaining Unit Employees Covered Expiration
City of North Wildwood Full-time professional and certified June 30, 2023
Education Association personnel (teachers and nurses),

(NWEA) full-time custodial employees, full-
time clerical employees, and full-
time aides.

Part-time employees, supervisors
(including the head custodian),
managerial executives,
confidential employees and
administrative employees are not
covered under this contract.

Part-time employees, supervisors (including the head custodian), managerial executives, confidential
employees and administrative employees are not covered under the above mentioned contract. The
Board of Education has entered into individual employment agreements these individuals, as well as with
the Superintendent and Business Administrator. The expiration of these contracts will vary depending on
the position.

NOTE 15. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated
Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as
employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on their individual
contracts.

In the District-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than
one year are reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due in more
than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds
as the benefits accrue to employees.

NOTE 16. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed
below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under
the plan are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

Colonial Life MetLife
AXA Equitable Putnam
Lincoln Investment SBP Commerce Bank
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NOTE 17. RISK MANAGEMENT

The district is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability and surety bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 the District did not incur claims in
excess of their coverage.

This District is a member of the Atlantic and Cape May Counties School Business Officials Joint
Insurance Fund (ACCASBO JIF). This Fund was formed under the provisions of NJSA 18A:18B 1-10.

The purpose of this Fund is to permit member Boards of Education to make use of their powers and
resources by cooperating on a basis that will be of mutual advantage and to provide a procedure for
development, administration, and provision of Risk Management Programs, a Joint Self Insurance Fund,
Joint Insurance Purchases and related services for members and their employees for the following:

e Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

e Automobile and Equipment Liability, General Liability and Property Damage

e School Board Legal Liability

e Boiler and Machinery

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance — The District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method.” Under this plan,
the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts
due to the State. The following is a summary of the District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust
fund for the current and prior two years:

Fiscal District Employee Claims Ending
Year Contributions Contributions Paid Balance
2019-2020 - 4,923.59 3,514.40 65,458.24
2018-2019 - 7,047.45 16,990.97 64,049.05
2017-2018 - 7,133.53 6,119.62 73,992.57

NOTE 18. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of June 30, 2020, interfunds remained on the various balance sheets of the City of North Wildwood of
Education.

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 176,083.73
Special Revenue Fund 101,459.86
Capital Projects Fund 50,117.31
Debt Service Fund 50,117.31
Proprietary Fund-Food Service 74,623.87
$ 226,201.04 226,201.04

All interfunds are created as a result of timing differences between cash requirements in various funds
and the receipt of cash from funding agencies, and to subsidize operating revenue in food service.
During the 2020 fiscal year, the general fund made a permanent interfund transfer in the amount of
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$30,000.00 to the enterprise fund to partially cover accumulated deficits in the District's food service
program. It is anticipated that all interfunds will be liquidated during the fiscal year.

NOTE 19. LITIGATION

From time to time, the District is a defendant in legal proceedings relating to its operations as a school
district. In the best judgment of the District's management, the outcome of any legal proceedings will not
have any adverse effect on the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 20. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund (Exhibit B-1) - Of the $4,951,459.07 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2020,
$558,642.36 is reserved for encumbrances, $1,730,180.23 has been committed to the capital reserve
fund; $897,159.30 has been committed to the maintenance reserve fund; $51,427.20 has been reserved
for tuition increases ($738.00 of this amount has been included as anticipated revenue for the year
ending June 30, 2021), $1,491,067.98 is reserved as excess surplus in accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7
($932,745.55 of the total reserve for excess surplus has been appropriated and included as anticipated
revenue for the year ending June 30, 2021); $0.00 has been appropriated and also included as
anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2020; and $222,982.00 is unreserved and
undesignated.

Debt Service Fund — Of the Debt Service Fund fund balance at June 30, 2020, $0.00 is reserved in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 7F-41c(2) and $50,357.53 is unreserved and undesignated.

NOTE 21. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

The designation for Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2020 is
$1,491,067.98, of which $932,745.55 has been included in the 2020-21 budget. The excess fund
balance at June 30, 2019 was $1,613,878.82.

NOTE 22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Other
The District has evaluated subsequent events through January 25, 2021, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and no additional items were noted for disclosure or adjustment.
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City of North Wildwood School District
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Note A - Explanation of Difference between Budgetary Inflows and

Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue” from the budgetary
comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized

Prior year
Current year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year.

Total revenues reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies
are received for financial reporting purposes
Prior year
Current year

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds

See Accompanying Auditor's Report

Exhibit C-3

General Special
Fund Revenue
9,693,337.72 774,390.35
90.00
(15,988.73)
37,837.00 -
(36,163.00)
9,695,011.72 758,491.62
8,551,706.81 774,390.35
90.00
(15,988.73)
8,551,706.81 758,491.62
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
Public Employee Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
Last Four Fiscal Years

District's proportion of the net OPEB
liability (asset)

District's proportionate of the net OPEB
liability (asset)

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) associated with the District

Total
District's covered payroll

District's proportionate share of the net
OPERB liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB
liability

State's proportionate share of OPEB
associated with the District:

Service Cost

Interest Cost

Differences between Expected & Actual
Changes in Assumptopns

Member Contributions

Benefit Payments

Change in Total Opeb Liability

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) associated with the District -
Beginning Balance

Ending Balance

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability associated with the District -
as a percentage of its covered-employee
payroll

2019

2018

2017

2016

0.00%

14,946,706.00

0.00%

16,964,170.00

0.00%

19,640,389.00

0.00%

21,195,242.00

$ 14,946,706.00

$ 16,964,170.00

19,640,389.00

21,195,242.00

4,042,008.00 4,132,923.00 4,211,508.00
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
561,664 623,812.00 752,688.00
669,717 717,688.00 619,316.00
(3,026,484) (1,633,058.00)
222,857 (1,946,723.00) (2,488,695.00)
13,601 15,678.00 16,751.00
(458,819) (453,616.00) (454,913.00)
(2,017,464.00) (2,676,219.00) (1,554,853.00)

16,964,170.00

19,640,389.00

21,195,242.00

$ 14,946,706.00

$ 16,964,170.00

$ 19,640,389.00

369.78%

410.46%

Source: GASB 75 report on State of New Jersey State Health Benefits Program; District records

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 75 to be show information for a 10 year period.
However, information is only currently available for four years.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.

466.35%

4,295,207.00

0.00%

0.00%
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City of North Wildwood School District
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Preschool Education Aid
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Actual
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of teachers $ 146,855.00 146,855.00
Other salaries for instruction 48,148.00 46,436.55
Purchased professional-educational services 36,762.00 10,361.00
General supplies 38,200.00 8,905.62
Total instruction 269,965.00 212,558.17
Support services:
Professional services - employee benefits 103,685.00 103,685.00
Total support services 103,685.00 103,685.00
Total Expenditures $ 373,650.00 316,243.17

E-2

Variance

1,711.45
26,401.00
29,294.38

57,406.83

57,406.83

CALCULATION OF BUDGET AND CARRYOVER

Total Revised 2019-20 Preschool Education Aid Allocation
Add: Actual ECPA/PEA Carryover June 30, 2019
Add: Budgeted Transfer from the General Fund 2019-20
Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2019-20 Budget
Less: 2019-20 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including
prior year budget carryover)
Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Funds as of June 30, 2020

Add: June 30, 2020 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid
Less: 2019-20 Commissioner-approved Transfer to the General Fund

2019-20 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid Program

2019-20 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2020-21 $

See Accompanying Auditor's Report

373,650.00

373,650.00

(373,650.00)

57,406.83

57,406.83
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City of North Wildwood School District
Capital Projects Fund

F-2

Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Revenue and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SDA
Bond proceeds and transfers
Transfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay

Total revenues
Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses
Purchase of Land
Purchased Professional
and Technical Services
Construction Services
Other Objects
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance- beginning

Fund balance - ending

129,983.35
3,777,072.94

3,907,056.29

(3,907,056.29)

3,907,176.61

$ 120.32
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F-2a
City of North Wildwood School District
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Various Improvements, Replacement of HVAC System, and Roof Restoration at Margaret Mace Elementary School
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Additional project information:

Project Number

Prior Periods Current Perioc Totals Revised Authorized Cos
Revenue and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SDA -
Bond proceeds and transfers 4,102,000.00 4,102,000.00 4,102,412.05
Transfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues 4,102,000.00 - 4,102,000.00 4,102,412.05
Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses
Purchase of Land -
Purchased Professional
and Technical Services 334,303.86 106,439.91 440,743.77 416,069.28
Construction services 547,689.39 3,098,301.40 3,645,990.79 3,686,342.77
Other Objects
Total expenditures 881,993.25 3,204,741.31 4,086,734.56 4,102,412.05
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 3,220,006.75 (3,204,741.31) 15,265.44 -

3680-060-18-1000

Grant Date N/A
Bonds Authorization Date 10/2/2018
Bonds Authorized 4,102,412.05
Bonds Issued 4,102,000.00
Original Authorized Cost 4,102,412.05
Additional Authorized Cost -
Revised Authorized Cost 4,102,412.05
Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost -
Percentage completion 99.62%
Original target completion date December 31, 2019
Revised target completion date N/A
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F-2b
City of North Wildwood School District
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Renovations, Alterations, and Improvements at Margaret Mace Elementary School
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Prior Periods Current Perioc Totals Revised Authorized Cos
Revenue and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SDA $ -
Bond proceeds and transfers 847,000.00 847,000.00 847,490.95
Transfer from capital reserve -
Transfer from capital outlay -
Total revenues 847,000.00 - 847,000.00 847,490.95
Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses
Purchase of Land -
Purchased Professional
and Technical Services 82,159.97 23,543.44 105,703.41 107,113.15
Construction services 77,670.17 678,771.54 756,441.71 740,377.80
Other Objects
Total expenditures 159,830.14 702,314.98 862,145.12 847,490.95
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ 687,169.86 (702,314.98) (15,145.12) -
Additional project information:
Project Number 3680-060-18-1000
Grant Date N/A
Bonds Authorization Date 10/2/2018
Bonds Authorized 847,490.95
Bonds Issued 847,000.00
Original Authorized Cost 847,490.95
Additional Authorized Cost -
Revised Authorized Cost 847,490.95
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost -
Percentage completion 101.73%
Original target completion date December 31, 2019
Revised target completion date N/A
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City of North Wildwood School District
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Unemployment
Compensation

ADDITIONS
Employee contributions $ 4,923.59
Board contributions
Total additions 4,923.59
DEDUCTIONS
Other payments 3,514.40
Total deductions 3,514.40
Change in net position 1,409.19
Net assets—beginning of the year 64,049.05
Net assets—end of the year $ 65,458.24

See Accompanying Auditor's Report

84



LONG-TERM DEBT




{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



11oday sJ01pny BulAuedwoody 995

00°000°'S..'Y 00°000'7.T 00'000'676'% $

00°000°'S..L'Y 00°'000‘V.T 00'000'616'% %E9°E 00°000°01€ 9€/T/6
%0S°'€ 00°000°017€ GEIT/6
%0S°'€ 00°000°017€ VEITI6
%05°'€ 00°000°0€E €EITI6
%0S°'€ 00°000°02Z€ CEITI6
%0S°'€ 00°000°0TE TEIT/6
%0S°'€ 00°000°00€ 0€/T/6
%0S°€ 00°000°062 62/T/6
%05°'€ 00°000°082 8¢/T/6
%SC'€ 00000022 L2IT/6
%SZ'€ 00°000°'092 9¢/T/6
%SZ'€ 00°000°0S52 G¢/T/6
%00°¢ 00°000°Gie 2I1/6
%00°¢€ 00°000°GEC €¢ITI6
%00°¢ 00°000°0€2 2ciTie
%00°¢ 00°000°022 T2/T/6
%00°¢ 00°000°GT2 0¢/T/6 000'6¥6't 8T/6¢/TT spuog |ooyds

0202 ‘0€ aunr painay panss| 6102 ‘T AINC arey junowy areq anss| anss| anss|
aoueeg aoueeg 1sai91u| sanuNIeY [enuuy JO JUnowy Jo areq
020z ‘o€ aunp
spuog [elias Jo a|npayIs
109 wia]-buo]
Tl 1011S1d |00YdS POOMPJIA YHON J0 A1D

85



L0'€0T'TT £5°/5€'0S 9 ¥52'6€ - 9 ¥S2'6E

- 9 ¥SZ'6€ 9 ¥SZ'6€ 9v'¥S2'6E

L0°€0T'TT L0'€0T'TT - - -

GZ'20T'TT GZ'20T'TT -

Z8°0 Z8°0 - - -

280 8T VTLZLE 00°STL'ZLE - 00'STL‘Z.E

280 8T VTLTLE 00'STL'ZLE - 00'STL'Z.E

- 00°000'%.T 00°000'.T - 00°000'%.LT

Z8°0 8TVT.'86T 00°ST.‘86T - 00'STL‘86T

- 00'STL'ZLE 00'STL‘ZLE - 00'STL'Z.E

- 00°€2.°92T 00'€2.'92T - 00'€2.'92T

- 00°€2.°92T 00°€2.°92T 00'€2.'92T

- 00'266'G7C 00'266'G7Z - 00'266'SYZ

- 00'266'G7Z 00'266'G7Z 00'266'SZ

[enioy 03 feulq enoy 19b6png slajsuel | 196png

(enirebaN) anmsod feuid 196png feuibuo

Q0uelle A\

€1 1qiyx3g

020Z ‘0€ aunr papu3 JesA [eosid 8y} Jo-
pund a821AJ8S 19ad
a|npayos uosuedwo) Arelabpng
1014381 |00YIS POOMP]IM YIION 0 AND

1i0day sJonpny BulAuedwoody 89S

0€ aunr ‘aauefeg pun4
T AInC ‘aouefeg pun4

sainypuadx3 (1Iapun) JanQ sa9inos Buroueul
1210 pue sanuanay Jo (Aoualoleq) Ssaax3

puny sjoafoid fended ui pautes 1salaiu|
:ul staysuel BuneladQ
:$92In0S BuloueulH JBYIO
sainiipuadx3 (1apun) JeAQ sanuanay Jo (Aoualoleq) ssaox3
saimyipuadxa [e10]
99IMIBS 102 Jejnbay [elo |
redioulld jo uondwapay
1salay|
:90IMIBS 19oQ Jeinbay
:S3YNLIANIdX3
SaNuUaAaY [e10|

S92IN0S 91elS [e10 |

I18dA 1 - piv 800MI8S 108Q
.S921N0S °3lklS

$92.N0S [2207 [e10 1

SNoaue||9ISIN
Ao xe] [eo0]
:S92IN0S 2207
‘S3INNINTY

86



Statistical Section




{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



06'6LT'26EL ¥5°'G2T'06T'9 /T1°181'20E'S 02'926'LEL'Y 10°€89'952'S 00°€69°2TS'S 00'692'TST'L 00 TOV'¥2S'L 00°€86'92T'L 00°€6E'T8Y'9
(eT6v2'196'27)  (LveeL'0es'?)  (ev9re'ser'e)  (Lp'T28'9ge’?)  (9v'856'6T0'7)  (00°2pT'96.°T)  (00°896'86) 00'9v2'v9 00'82S'8S 00'068‘€VC
6€° 16582 1L 19T'EES'L 0€°085'065'C 2°'525'580'C 0€°L97'6.T'C 00°STE'89T'C 00262'€ET'C 00'982'G2L'T 000T9'G/8'T 00'V.LEY8T'C
¥9°'1€8'622'S v2169°202'T 0€°€ZT'8YT'S G2'2.2'686'7 €ZVLT'160'S 00°S2S'SPT'S 00°SYP'LTT'S 00'69€¥0T'S 00'G¥8'999'v  00°62T'€S0'Y
¥/, '66%'92 0€°086'€2 0L°€65'22 29°870'72Z 20'189'7C 00°00T'62 00°652'92 00°280'82 00°ESY'82 00°€2.'82
¥.'66%'92 0€°086'€2 0L°€65'22 29°870'7Z 20189'7Z 00°00T'62 0065292 00280'82 00°€S¥'82 00°€22'82
97°089'0LE"L ¥2'SYT'99T'9 /1°€6T'082'S 8G°LL8'ETLY S0'666'TEZ'S 00°€65'88Y'S 00°0T0'SZT'L 00'6TE'96V'L 00°0€5'860°L 00°02.9'25v'9
(z88v2'185'7)  (L26T.'v.S'2)  (eT'0TS'8G¥'2)  (60°026'09€'2)  (8v'2v9'vv0'z)  (00°2¥2'Se8'T)  (00°222'GeT) 00'v9T'9T9 00'G.0'9SS 00°/9T'GT2
6€°L6S'82L'Y 1L 19T'EES'L 0€°085'065'2 21°'625'S80'C 0€°L9%'6LT'2 00°STE'89T'2 00°Z62'€ET'C 00982'GLL'T 00°0T9'5/8'T 00'V.E'¥8T'C
¥9'1€8'622'S ¥2'169'202'T 0€°€2T'8YT'S S2'2.2'686'Y €ZVLT'260'S 00°G2S'SYT'S 00°SPY'LTT'S 00°69€'70T'S 00°G¥8'999't 00°62T'€S0'Y
0202 6102 8102 1102 9102 5102 ¥102 €102 2102 1102
‘0og aung papu3 jes A ay} 104
panpneun

T-C

SIe9A [e0SI4 ua] 1seT

‘uauodwo) Aq uonisod 1©N
10113S1Q |00YdS POOMPIIM YION 0 AHD

T-V 9INpyY8dS ¥-vO :89Inos

uonisod 12U 19LISIP [e10 1
paomsaiun
pa1osay
sjosse [eyded Ul Juswisanul 18N
apim-josia

uonisod 1au sanAnoe adAl-ssauisng [e1o L
pajouIsaIun
sjasse [ended ul Juawisanul 19N
sanAnoe adAl-ssauisng

uoiisod 18U SanIAoe [eluaWUIBA0B [e10 |
parmsaun
pallsay
sjosse [ended uj JuUBWISaAUl 19N
SBNIAIOE [RJUBWUIBA0D)

87



0¥'G9G'99€'E ¥2'968'8T6'E 18'029'sve'v T0'858'V6. '€ T.°'1€8'/82'€ 00'8/9'SVT'E 00'88.'/18'T 00'992'G9€'T 00'0€6'ST9'T 00'509'798'T
ov'zeL'vi9'e 66°018'282'E €€°0/9'9T.'E T0'G.6'982'€ T.'TE8'SIS'C 00'692'752'C 00'88L'2LT'T 00°€2.L'LT9 00'L¥1'8€9 00'TSV'vE9
00'€V8'12L G2'S80'9€9 ¥5'056'8¢2S 00°€88°20S 00°000°22L 00'601'168 00'000'G29 00°€VS L. 00°€81'LL6 00'¥ST'0EC'T
11°08v'1v2'0T 0¥'209'2¥0'TT 1€29G'€ES'TT S0'1S6'820'CT T18'756'688'0T 00'6T5'.T2'0T 00'062'986'8 00'TOT'/19'8 00°020'/9.'8 00'825'G8T'6
0T°00%'20T 62'820'02T TE9SS'VTT 12 VEB'STT 9/°'¥90'22T 00°€86'8TT 00'S6T'12CT 00'8€5'20T 00'ST¥'92T 00'601'62T
0T'00%'20T 62'820'02T TE9SSVTT 12VEB'STT 9/°'¥90'22T 00'€86'8TT 00'S6T'T2T 00'8€5°20T 00'STV'92T 00'601'62T
1/9°080'VET 0T T1°6/5'226'0T 90'900'6TV'TT 8/ 9TT'CT6'TT S0'068'29.'0T 00'9€5'860'0T 00'560'G98'8 00'€9G'6E€5'8 00'509'019'8 00'6TT'950'6
2.°€86'96T T¥'8G€'G9 T16'6S1'V'T TL'€9L'T 60'TS.'0C 00°/8T'€C 00'2TT'9T 00°'S6V' i 00'¥T¥7'09 00'T¥6'2L
00'9TG'E 00'91G'E 00'9TG'E 0091922 26°026'79 - 00'9TG'ES
T1'86.'€C 09'€€8'0€ 2E'SEE' VT 96'T98'vC 00'G/G'ET 00'00G'E€T 00'0S9°'€T
TeeIv'eet 21°,20'82T €2'T90'€6 0T'€.6'LET 80°€€2'62T 00'90T°20T 00°.€8'STC 00°201'82T 00'T8.'18 00'0£6'60T
22'80G'€/2'T 96°'066'€L0‘T 07’ 199'122'T T¥'00v'0L2'T TV v9e'srT'T 00'885°288 00’ TSV 062 00'692'96. 00'80€'0VL 00'602'969
€1'/2€'68T 66'6.1'€0C 1¥'11v'00€ ¥S'T1G'S0E 8E'6T19'€LC 00'TST'Zve 00'2SP'€6T
Z8'€T0'9L 817'99G'6. 9€'/12'€0T GE'/91'60T 06'€SS'T0T 00'785'26 00°'2EV'28 00'8.5'v8 00'282'18 00'219'2L
6¥7'8ST'VSC ¥9'0EV'€8¢2 €1'€09°L.€ 0%'206'8€ 02’1682V 00'69.'G2E 00'96€'9.2 00'€0V'2TS 00868991 00'TTZ'8SY
TTLTT'€06'T 02'108'952'C 18'€6.'92T'C 82'262'7€0'C 2V'eLT'vS8' T 00°20G'2T9'T 00'8€9'6.E'T 00'9T2'/8V'T 00 T6T'TVY'T 00'62.'0€E'T
9¢'TOE'L0T'T 00'80T'T¥C'T 2V'626'796 20°'82€'09%'T 08'6TL'8TV'T 00'606'22S'T 00'€.E'0T8'T 00'26E'€0T'T 00'G62'TE9'T 00°€S5'789'T
16'92.'8.S TO'0¥6'€29 10'S6Z'VTL 16'97/'669 19'T66'T99 00°00.L'TSS 00'ST9'TTY 0082561 001882 00'2.G'L2y
78'G86'VEL L¥7'9/G'EV8 29°'S¥5'068 06'721'998 6.'€€E'G59 00°'9S0'76S 00°€LL'ELY 00'92€'12T'T 00°0.E'870'T 00'2S2'€9T'T
TV'1€2'699' €2°056'880't G2'080'78S't YT €CT'6.G'Y 6£°€9.'G80'V 00'6.V'SET'V 00'G¥8'LVT'E 00'67.'118'C 00°'G8T'919°C 00°0TT'OV0‘E

020¢ 610Z 810¢ /10 9T0Z ST0C ¥10¢ €102 Z10c 1170C

‘0€ BuN( papu3 JeaA 8y} 104
palpneun

cr

SIB9A [eJSI4 Ua] 1seT ‘uo

0d 18N ul sabueyd

10141SIQ |00YIS POOMPIIA YHON 0 AND

88

sanuanal weibold sanianoe [eluswuianob ejo L
suonnquiuod pue syuelb [ended
suonnguiuod pue sjuelb bunelado
S921MI8S 0} sabieyd

ISAIIAIIOR [RIUSWUIBAOD)

sanuanay weibolid

sasuadxa 1o1IsIp [el0L

asuadxa saninnoe adAl-ssauisng e
92IAI9S PO0-

:saninnoe adAl-ssauisng

sasuadxa saniAnoe [eyuswuianob [ejo L

uolyeloaidap paresojeun

1gop wial-6uo| uo 1saiau|

Keino rended

sj00y9s [epads
uoneuodsuel jidnd
oueUSIUTEW pue suonelado jueld
S92IAIBS AAlelISIUIWPE Ssauisng
S92INIBS SAlRlISIUIWPE [00YIS
S9OINIBS AAlRIISIUIWPE 18I0
S90IAIBS paje[al uonaNJISul 9 JUBpNIS
uonint

:$921M19S Woddng

uononsul [erads Jayio
uoeonpa [epads
re|nbay
uonanJisul
SallIANOR [BIUBWILIBA0D
sosuadx3



89

2-V 9INpayds ¥-vO [89Inos

9€'750'202'T 1€'8€€'188 16°098'79S (28'962'819) (vv°661'552) 00'7.2'8€ (002€9'22€) 00'/T¥'L6€ 00°885'G79 00'288'0.5 10LISIP [el0L

Y¥'61G'C 09'98€'T (z6'vSP'T) (ov°5e9) (2T otv'y) 00'TVE'C (0o0'€ze'T) (0o0'128) (00°022) (00°€9T'vT) saAnoe adAl-ssauisng

26'7€S'V0Z'T 11°'T56'G88 68'GTE'99G (L' T21'819) (z€€80'152) 00°€EY'9E (00°60€'TLE) 00'88.'16€ 00°'858'G9 00°S70'G8S SONIAIOR [BJUBIUIBNAOD)

uolnisod 18N ul mmcmr_o

85°055'200'8 68'T6T'026'L §9'/22'0LL'L 6£'602'0£9'L 25'816'852'L 00'562'210'L 00200'799'9  00'685'685'.  008¥5'889°'L  00°26S'9LL°L 3pIM-10LISIP [e10 L

6£°005'0€ G2'/55'0€ 15'925'0¢ 60'2.0'0€ 05°€00°'0€ 0070082 00'700'8T 00'70S'2T 00'STO'ST 00°€€ saniAnoe adAl-ssauisng [e1oL
00°000°'0€ 00°000°'0€ 00°000°'0€ 00°000°'0€ 00°000°'0€ 00°000'82 00°000'8T 00°00S'LT 00°000'8T slajsuel L
6€°00S S2'/SS 15925 602L 0s'€ 00t 00t 00t 00'ST 00°€€ sBulures Juswisaau

:saninnoe adAl-ssauisng

6T°050'2/6'L ¥9'7€9'688'L 80'T0L'6ELL 0€'2ET'009'L 20'516'822'L 00'T62'686'9 00'866'G¥9'9  00°G80°2/S'.  00°€€S'0/9'L  00°655'9.L°L SsaniAnoe [eluaWwUIBn0b [e1o |
(00°000'0€) (00°000'0€) (00°000'0€) (00°000'0€) (00°000'0€) (00°000'82) (00°000'8T) (00°00G'2T) (00°000'8T) sigjsuel |
€€229'07 €T'9v0'LE sJapJo aseyaind Jeak Joud Jo uone|@oue)

- (89'T€9'29) anuanal Jeak Joud Jo uone|@oue)

- (00°252'€T) S19sSse paxl} Jo [esodsip uo Sso
€5'T52'05 02'2v8've 88'TY'ee ¥0'85.°'12 26°0v6'8 00°022'2€ 00°00.'8 00°'TOS'STT 00°2G€'TE 00'722'SS 8WOoUI SNOBUE|BISIN
99'792'€9 2.°190'S8 1¥'292'v2 €6'L7L'T 0T'8YS'T 00 TLY'T 00'706'0T 007152 00'889'2 00'66%' sBuiures Juswisanu
00'T9Z'66S 07'69T'879 07'90L'v¥9 02'960'899 00'2€2'€L9 00'T68'029 00°€79'299 00°0£€'0SE'T 00°090'68Z'T 00'¥ST'0€Z'T suonnquIuod pue selb pajoLlsaiun
00'266'SZ 00°€9T'68T 00°000'88T 00°€T6'06T 00°289'86T 00°060'T8T 00°2TT'¥0Z 00°082'TTZ 00671812 00°28€'092 S0IAISS 109 10} PaING| SaxXe |
00'T8Z'sv0'L 00'T8Z'sv0'L 00'899'8€8'9 00'9/5'70.'9 00°295'9/€'9 00'6T9'TET'9 00'6€9'2//'S  00°096'906'S  00'6/6'0ST'Q  00'Gr2'9zz'9 18U ‘sesodind [esauab Joj pains| saxe) Auadoid

IS3NIAIOE [RJUBWIUIBA0D)
uonIsSod 18N Ul sauey) JaylQ pue sanuandy [elauss

(zz'961'56.'9) (zges8'ze0’2)  (89°99¢'s0z'2)  (9z'996'svT's)  (96°2.¢'v15'2)  (00°T2s'ss6'9)  (00'v€9'9e0'2)  (002.T'z6T'Z)  (00°096'210'2)  (00°0T2'S0Z'2) asuadxa 19U SpIM-JOLISIP 10|
(G6°086'L2) (9°0.1'62) (6¥'186'1€) (6¥°202'0€) (z9°6T¥'vE) (00°€99'G2) (00°22€'6T) (00°628'21) (00°G82'8T) (0096T'vT) sanAnoe adAl-ssauisng
(2z'515°292'9) (28'289'¢00°2)  (6TS8e'€LT'2)  (22'8G2'8TT'8)  (ve850'08%'2)  (00'858'2S6'9)  (00°20€'210°2) (00°262'%2T'2)  (00°629'v20's)  (0O'VTS'T6T'ZL) SAIIIAIOR [EJUSWUIBN0D
anuanay/(asuadx3) 18N
SS'786'SrY'E 88'€5.'600't 69'G6T'8ZE'Y 6/'786'6/8'E G8'9/1'SLE'E 00'866'8€Z'E 00'959'676'T 00'626'7St'T 00°090'v2.'T 00'8T8'6/6'T senuaAal weiboid 1ousip [ejo L
ST6TY'6.L ¥9'/58'06 28'7.5'28 8/°921'S8 ¥T'S¥9'/8 00°0Z£'€6 00'898'T0T 00°£99'68 00°0£T'80T 00'E€TZ'STT sanuanal welboid sanianoe adAy ssauisng [ejo L
Z6'7TS'T9 89'G¥S'€9 ¥2'25€'65 8T'2/9'SS 86'879'GS 00°052'65 00'T9E'E9 00°'708'SS 00'992'29 00'8TT'S9 suonnquiuod pue sjuelb Buressdo
€2'706'LT 96'TTE L2 85'22z'ee 09'671'62 9T'966'TE 00°0.0'v€ 00°205'8€ 00'658'€E 00'798'SY 00°560°'05 80IAI8S pO0H
S32IAISS 10} sableyd
:saninnoe adAl-ssauisng
020z 6T0Z 8102 1102 9102 ST0Z 102 €102 Z102 1102
‘0og aung papu3 jea A ay} 1o
panpneun

cr

SIB9A [eJSI4 Ua] 1seT ‘uo

0d 18N ul sabueyd

10141SIQ |00YIS POOMPIIA YHON 0 AND



T-9 3INP3aYdS H4VvO :82IN0S

"TT0Z ‘0€ aunc Buipus

s1eak [easy 1o} aA93YS (ASVYO) pieog splepuels Bununoddy [eluswuIan0S ayl Aq
payipow a1am puny [esauab sy} ur souepeq puny Buiiodal 0) parejas sjuswalinbal ay L

€5°/GE'0S 9v'¥S2'6€ (09°€61'7T) (0z'ezz'e) (00°9T'€T) (00°¥Z1'6) (0o0t2'01) (00°0v8'2) (00'¥8T'TT) (00°286'6)
€G°/G€'05 9¥'v52Z'6€ - -
- (00°0) (09°€61'vT) (ozezz'e) (00°9.T'€T) (oo'vz1'6) (oootZ'01)

(00 0v8'2) (00°¥8T'TT) (00°286'6)
6£'6/5'TS6'Y 06'992'T6.'C 06'992'T6.'C 29'6/0'T0E'Z 0E'v¥Z'T0V'C 00'/TT'¥8E'Z 00'EY6'vYE'Z 00'8T2'80L'2 00°98v'88.'2 00'8/0'9Ev'2
00'286'222 00°€9T'21Z 09'98T'T0Z 0Z'7SG'STZ 00°222'T22 00'208'STZ 00'TS9'TTZ 00°'875'602 00'T18'202 00°29T'STZ
9€'2¥9'855 81°G98'G8€E'E 06'8€2 92°095'2Y TE8YZ'LTT 00°LTt'€82 00'7T6'TYT 00'752'98 00'85€'TSE
50°/88'8/9'C LY'ETY'EES'T €T'169'LEV'T S6'272'698 06'25.'96. 00°0.t'208 00'66T'ET8 00'TE8'0EL 00°'TT8'€Z9 00°0v€'26
86'/90'T6V'T 78'8/8'€T9'T 1T ¥¥9'2ST'T T222L'ELT'T 60°99%'G9Z'T 00'821'280'T 00'6.T'8LT'T 00'6€€'89.'T 00°0T9'G/8'T 00°€TZ'2LL'T

020z 6T0Z 8102 1102 9102 ST0Z 102 €102 Z102 1102
‘0€ aunr papuz JesA ay o4
paypneun

el

SIeaA [eosIH ua] iseT
‘Spund [eIUBWUIBA09 ‘saouefeg pung
1911S1Q |00YIS POOMPIIM YLION 40 A11D

Spuny [eIUSWIUIBA0B JaL0 |je [e10 L

puny 821M8s 198
puny s108loid jended
puny anuanal [epads

:ul payodal ‘paniasalun

paubisseun

paniasay

pajLIsay

SpuN4 [eIUBWUIBA0D JBYIO |IV

puny jesauab [ero |
panlasaiun
panlasay
paubisseun
paubissy
PaNIWWOD
pajuisay

pun4 [elauas

90



%06'€ %.6'T %20°C %G6'T %ZT'Z %IT'Z %92°Z %672 %IS'T %ES'T
(1€'879'282°2) €6'TTEL00'S 88°9T¥'G8Y (88°'T1Z'96) €7°GL0'ET 00°09Z°0% (00°6¥9°T.2€) (00925'12) 00'90€'TGE 00'262'20%
(00°000°0€) ZE€'89€'T98'Y €€229'0T €T9Y0°L (00°000°0€) (00°000'82) (00°000'8T) (00°005'2T) (00°000°8T) -
(5z'Z0T'TY) (90°570'69) (00°000°0€) (00°000°0€) (00°000°0€) (00°000'82) (00°000°8T) (00°005°2T) (00°000°8T)
G2'2oT'TT 90°ST0'6E

- 00°000'6Y76't

€€°229'0V ET'OV0'LE

- (89°1€9'L9)
(T€'8%9'252°2) T9'EV6'SPT SSV6.L' V.Y (T0'852'€0T) €2°GL0'EY 00°092'89 (00°5v9'€5€) (00920'vS) 00°90€'69€ 00°262'20¥
06'896'685°€T G6'6TT'€99°0T 10956'967'6  61252¢08'6  0S/.v'/GF'6  00'E0S'G9E'6 00 TEY'S98'8 0019/8'800°'6 00 ZGT'GE6'S  00°6TL'GL0'6
8T VT.'86T 0529T'V 0S829.°2 0527601 0G°/89°€T 00°8€6'ST 000TLTT 00°082°95 00°677°€9 0098€°0L
00°000'72T 00°000°'S8T 00°000°08T 00°000'08T 00°000°'S8T 00°000'08T 00°000'G8T 00°000'GST 00°000'GST 00°000'0ST
LOVSE'SY0'Y 6€°6EE'GV0'T 0T'G2E'€6T 00'919'2Z 26°026'79 00°€95'2S 00°00€'L¥T 00°088'72S 00°225'022 00°EvY'TGE

- - - - - - 00°LVE'VT
86'666'GT 88'6T.'8T 00°000'tT 00'G/G'ET 00°GLS'ET 00°00S'€T 00°0S9'€T 00°005'2T 00°026'0T 00°002°0T
2 v0S'28r'e 20vLY'867'C 0T°'G90'€SS‘'C  ¥8'069'6TV'C  ¢6'696'2ST'C  00°958'2.6‘T  00229'22LT  00'€LV'008‘T  00°228'€9S‘T  00°GZ8'6TS'T
12°2TIr'eeT 21°220'82T €2°190'c6 0T'€L6'LET 80°€€2'62T 00°90T'20T 00°955'99T 00°20T'82T 0018218 00°0€6'60T
10°805'08. ¥2°L25'919 T9v6.'619 GE°06.'089 82°200'8T. 00°6T2'229 00°026'609 00°965'76G 00°152'2.S 00°9%2'58S
9z'GeS'eeT 52°260'22T 8€'90T'V.T SZ672'2LT 29°GeS'TLT 009T2'0LT 002Z82'6vT
68°006'8% 8v'zeL'8Y 128165 16'806'T9 12°T99'€9 00°T22'S9 00°0T9'€9 00°99.'09 00°059°'T9 00°020°2S
69°216'69T L6'776'ELT £1°666'T2Z 08°288'022 15°056'7T2C 00°599'622 00°282'€TZ 00°Z¥1'89€ 00°0ET'¥SE 00°207'TSE
96'229'LLT'T 95'T25'29e'T 0Zv¥86'60T'T  90°06T'PYT'T  6T°G8Y'TOT'T  00°ZTY'620'T  00°087'990°T  00°80S'890°T  00°Z0T'€60'T  00°9EL'LTO'T
9€'T0E'L0T'T 0080T'T¥Z'T 2¥'626'796 20'82€'09%'T  08'6TL'8TF'T  00606'22S'T  008TOL6E'T  00Z6EEOT'T  00876°9T9'T  00°ESS¥89'T
SZ°9T6'7SE €L°€2T'GSE 01°86€'8€E /8'T8E'0VE LT'T92'€6€ 00°102'25€ 002€9'LTE 00°697'0TE 00'766'72E 00°598'06¢
80'GTG'EEY €9'689'G8Y 1€°90.'99% 2v'LSS'8GY 10°90€'68€ 00°TVZ'6.LE 00°865'G9€ 00°629'G08 00°29T'S6. 00°885'206
S TLL'ESET 8T°1G9°LLEC 82'TF9'00S'C  LO'T6T'8LP'C  €L°8LT'/2r'C  00°906'TS9'C  00°999°0€¥'C  00FET'0Z0'C 00790200  00'G2S'696'T
65°02€'LE8'0T 95°€90'608°0T 29°0S.'T.6'6 8T 766'869'6 €.255°00S'6 00E9ZVEF'6  0098.'TIS'8  000S8'¥S6'8  00'E9Y ¥OE'6 00 TTO'8LY'6
€2°L¥SCzE 66792'98€ 8% LGE'EEE SV'ETC'0LE 0€°,60'GSE 00'8L.L'62F 00766282 00'TL0'VSE 00'7ES'€6E 00'TEY'69€
LT TVT'06E'C Ov'6SE VYT GZ'0/0'6Z0'C  6T'GS8'€68'T  E€V'99¥'292'T  00'8/8'9¥9'T 00 TI9TYS'T 00 TZO'€T9'T  00280°22S'T  00'TZO'0EE'T
€5°T52'0S 0Z'zv8've 88'TPY'EE 19°508'62 06°98T'6Z 00°810'2ST 00'625'T 00°29v'6TT 00°872'vE 00'¥22'LS
99'%92'€9 2.°190's8 1729272 €6°LYL'T 0T'8vS'T 00 TL¥'T 00'706'0T 00152 008892 00°667'
00°€¥8'TZ. GZ'G80'9€9 ¥5°056'82S 00°€88'20S 00°000°2LL 00°607'T68 00°000'529 00°2VS'LYL 00°€8Y'LL6 00'¥ST'0€2'T
00°€.2'682'L 00'vvY'2ee'L 00'899'920°'.  00'687'G68'9  00¥SC'S.S'9  00°60L°C7IE'9  00'TSL'T86'G  00°0¥Z'8TT'9  00'8ZF'69€'9  00°Z€9'987'9

0202 6102 8702 1702 9102 GT0C ¥102 €702 2102 1102
papneun

SIe9A [edSI4 Ua] iseT

‘Spun4 [eIUBWIUIBAOS ‘saoueleg pun4 ui sabueyd
191110 |00YS POOMPJIM YLION 40 AlID

2-9 9|Npayds ¥y4vO :821n0s

sainypuadxa [eyndeosuou
10 abejusoiad e se 921AIas 1g9a

saoueleq puny ur abueyd 18N

(sasn) sa2inos Buroueuly Y10 [e10 ]
o sigjsuel|
Ul sigjsuel]
spaaooid puog
slaplo aseyaind Jeak Joud jo uone|eauR)
9|qenIadal Jeak Joud Jo uone|@oue)
(sasn) saoinos Buioueuld 18Y10

sainpuadxa (Japun) Jan0

sanuanal Jo (Aoualoyaq) ss99x3

sainypuadxa felo]
sabreyd Jayio pue 1salaiu|
rediound

:90IM8S 1920

Aepno reuded

S|o0Yy9S Jaueyd

s|ooyos [eads
s)yauaq aakojdwa paresojeun
uonepodsuen idnd
ouRUSURW pue suoielado jued
S9OINIBS SATRAISIUIWpPe SSaulsng
S9OINIBS SAITRNISIUIWPY [00YIS
S3IINIBS SATRNISIUIWpPE [RIBUD)
S9OIAIBS pare|al uonoNAsul 9 WUBapMS
uomny

:s90IM9S Woddng
uononasul [e1pads JBYIO
uonoNISul uoreonpa [e1nads
uononisul fejnfoy

uononisu|

sainypuadx3y

anuanal [elo]
$92IN0S [elapad
$32IN0S d1e1S
SNo3UE|[9ISIN
sBuiures 1sasau|
sabreyo uonin|
Ano| xe |

sanuanay

91



City of North Wildwood School District

General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Fiscal Year Interest on Tuition
Ended June 30, Investments Revenue Misc. Total
2011 16,528.00 1,230,154.00 45,246.00 1,291,928.00
2012 2,688.00 977,483.00 31,357.00 1,011,528.00
2013 2,514.00 747,542.00 111,056.00 861,112.00
2014 10,904.00 675,000.00 8,700.00 694,604.00
2015 1,471.00 891,409.00 32,220.00 925,100.00
2016 1,548.10 772,000.00 8,940.92 782,489.02
2017 1,747.93 507,883.00 27,758.04 537,388.97
2018 24,262.47 528,950.54 33,441.88 586,654.89
2019 46,052.66 626,906.00 24,842.20 697,800.86
2020 52,162.41 721,843.00 50,251.53 824,256.94

Source: District Records
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City of North Wildwood School District

Principal Property Tax Payers,

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Unaudited
2020 2011
Taxable % of Total Taxable % of Total
Assessed Rank District Net Assessed Rank District Net
Taxpayer Value [Optional] Assessed Value Value [Optional] Assessed Value
Youschak Properties, LLC 14,000,000.00 1 0.53% 23,754,200.00 1 0.86%
The Morey Organization 9,686,700.00 2 0.37% 9,668,800.00 2 0.35%
Wyoming Properties, INC. 6,350,000.00 3 0.24% 6,847,800.00 4 0.25%
Matador Motel, INC. 5,860,000.00 4 0.22% 5,173,900.00 7 0.19%
RHR Wildwood 423, LLC 5,500,000.00 5 0.21%
Taxpayer #1 5,130,000.00 6 0.20%
Wildwood Grocery Owners, LLC 4,979,800.00 7 0.19% 6,353,400.00 5 0.23%
Sportland Investments 4,750,000.00 8 0.18% 7,394,800.00 3 0.27%
North Point Developers, LLC 4,500,000.00 9 0.17% 4,936,600.00 9 0.18%
W & E Enterprises 4,499,000.00 10 0.17% 5,082,100.00 8 0.18%
Beach Creek Marina, INC. 4,760,100.00 10 0.17%
Kings Inn Motel 5,334,200.00 6 0.19%
Total 65,255,500.00 2.49% 79,305,900.00 2.88%

Source: District CAFR & Municipal Tax Assessor

District Total Taxable Value

2,620,112,600.00

GASB requires this table to present the principal taxpayers for the current year and nine years ago.

2,752,506,108.00
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City of North Wildwood School District
Property Tax Levies and Collections,

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited

Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal Year of

Year the Levy Collections in
Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage of Subsequent

June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years

2011 6,486,632.00 6,486,632.00 100% -
2012 6,369,428.00 6,369,428.00 100% -
2013 6,118,240.00 6,118,240.00 100% -
2014 5,981,751.00 5,981,751.00 100% -
2015 6,312,709.00 6,312,709.00 100% -
2016 6,575,254.00 6,575,254.00 100% -
2017 6,895,489.00 6,895,489.00 100% -
2018 7,026,668.00 7,026,668.00 100% -
2019 7,232,444.00 7,232,444.00 100% -
2020 7,289,273.00 7,289,273.00 100%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute,
a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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City of North Wildwood School District
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Net General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value ° of

June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita ”
2011 1,356,000.00 - 1,356,000.00 0.05% 339
2012 1,201,000.00 - 1,201,000.00 0.04% 302
2013 1,095,000.00 - 1,095,000.00 0.04% 278
2014 910,000.00 - 910,000.00 0.03% 233
2015 730,000.00 - 730,000.00 0.03% 189
2016 545,000.00 - 545,000.00 0.02% 142
2017 365,000.00 365,000.00 0.01% 96
2018 185,000.00 185,000.00 0.01% 49
2019 4,949,000.00 4,949,000.00 0.19% 1,316
2020 4,775,000.00 4,775,000.00 0.17% 1,270

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.

b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.

J-11
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